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International Business Machines Corporalion P.0. Box 100
- Sofmars, NY 10589
July 18, 1995 814/766-1900

Ma. Nell Miller

OXM Contoller
Microsoft Corporation
One Microsoft Way
Redmond, WA 98052

Subject: Audit Issues

Reference: Your letter to me Dated July 14, 1995
scott V. Palka's letter to you dated July 12, 1995 .
our Telephone Conversation on this subject on July 13, 1998

Dear Nell,

It ig apparent from your jetter that I have not clearly communicated IBM's
poaition_cn.zhe.iaaues relating to the audit. To eliminate any misunderstanding
1 have restuted‘lau'e9positiuh'on’each‘nf:the:iesues.belcw:

GTSI Systens

Ia July of 1993 the 1BM Special Bids organization.ideatified an opportunity
to market 1BM PC's to Government Technology Services, Inc. {GTs1) for
redistribution to the Air Force. The reguirements of this bid were that

* the systems be preloaded with MS DOS 6.0 and Windows 3.1 and that the

" syatems would be marketed with the GTSI logo. To enable IBMY to compete -
- effectively .for this business with the lowest posgible cost, IBM entered
into negotiations with Microsoft {o-perﬁit”!ﬂ!‘td‘takz“advantage-of"tme
“par system" xates in the Windowe License Agreoment dated June 10, 1987,

" as amended, for these GTSI logo'ed systems. This agreement is documented

' in Dave %Wright's letter to John Kalb dated July 23, 1993 and ie further
confirmed by Irwin Drucker's letter to Dave Wright dated July 26,.1933.

When Microsoft announced Windows 31.11, GTSI requested that all future
shipments under the Air Force Desktop IV bid be preloaded with Windowa 3.11.
In January of 1994 IBM and Micragoft coampleted negotiations for the

Licengse Agreement for Microsoft Windows and Microsoft Windows for
Workgroups dated January 1, 1994 and I8M regquested Microacft's approval

for desgignation of GTSI ae an vgligible Third Party" under Subeection 1(a)
of this agreement to permit IBM to begin shipping Windowse 3.11 instead

of Windows 3.1 to GTSI. This request and Microsoft's approval is documented
in my letter to Mark Baber dated January 26, 1994, in which IBM agreed to
provide Microsoft with an updated list of GTSI model numbere and to

report the GTSI volumes as Beparate line items on ite gquarter royalty
report.

ARlthough IBM is unable to locate a copy of the letter which identifiee : GOVERNMENT -
the new GISI models to Microsoft, IBM paid royalties to Microsoft EXHIBIT :
thoughout 1994 for GTSI gystema, which were 21l prelcaded with windowe
3.11, on a "per system" basis and separately jdentified these payments
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on its quarterly royalty reports as GTSI "per eystem” paymenta. At no
time during 1994 did Microsoft indicate that it had not received the
notification letter for GTSI; nor did it question IgM's eligibility to
make “per aystem" payments for GTSI.

We believae that there was a clear agreement between the partiea that GTSI
eyotems would be ghipped on a nper system" pasis and that thia wadg 3
condition of Microsoft's approval of GTSI as an vgpligible Third Party"
under the terms of Subgsection 1(a) the current Windowsa license agreement.
Furthermore, W& bolieve that the actions of both IBM and Microsoft,

during the time period when IBM was shipping gyetemg to GTSI preloaded
with Windows 3.11 and reporting and paying "per eysten" royalties to
Microscft for these systeme, are consistent with thie agreement.

gffective Date of Model Designations for Par Systen Royalties

As you have indicated in your jetter dated July 14, 1995, Section 5,22

~ of the Windows License Agreenment states that "IBM shall provided notice
of the foregoing elections to M5 pefore each fouT (4) quarter peziod
commences (or in the case of newly introduced model numbers, before the
end of the firet quarter of such four (4) quarter periogd)..." This

. language was pubseguently amended as 38 cesult of a meeting that took
plece in Boca Raton between 1M and Microeoft in May of 1993 to discuas
administration of the yoyalty provisions of the Windows License agreement.
Thie amendment is documented 3in Irwin Drucker's yYetter to Deb McFarlane,

- the IBM Account Manager, dated May 12, 1993, which states:

wper our verbal agreement on May 11, 1993, thie jetter will merve to

. confirw that iz the case where IBM i8 electing to pay the “per system"

royalty rate for Windows as specified in section 9.22(iv) of the
referenced agreement, the four (&) congecutive calexndar quartst-period
ip mot required to commence ofl the first day of that respective calendar
quarter {ie. January 1st, april 1st, July let or October lst}. IBM will
pay the “per pysten" rate cffective the firet date the designated
system(8) begin shipping for the duration of the four quarter pericd.”

T5’'J\Baa':|:ezm‘1t-o.i,x:zu‘.q,aga:e:emem:. it has been IBM'S practice to begin
paying ‘per systenm” zoyaltieé'at”the‘first%cnstomerxnhlpJ(ch).af.each
new model and, as provided in Subsection 9.22, to provide notificatlon ™™
- to Microsoft for new models before the end of the firet quarter in

- which each such new model .ghipa.

pesignation Expiration

The Windows License Agreement does not contain'apecific provisiona

for what royalty rate will apply to vdesignated gysteme" at the end of
the four guarter commi.tment period (le. it does not specify that the
royalty rate will revert to “per copy" or that 1gM ie required toO
redesignate auch systems to continue to be eligible for the "'per system”
rate). da a practical matter, because of rapid changes in technology.
very few systews ship for more than four calendar quarters pefore they
become obsolete as a reault of the announcement of new models. It has
peen IBM's practice to pay the "per system" royalty for designated sysatems
for the life of the product, from FCS until the product stope ghipping.
since IBM has designated thousanda of modaels for the "per system" rate,
it would be a eignificant administrative burden to crack each model to
determine when the four quarter calendar period ends and to send a new
designation letter. We believe that the practice we have followed if
fair to both parties and reesults in appropriate payments to Microsoft.
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Administrative Exrors

The audit has revealed that some models were not designated as "per ayeten"
due to administrative erxrore, although IBM paid the “per system" royalty
for such models. When you consider that IBM hasg designated several

thousand models for the "per systeam" rate and that for each such designation
information must flow from the 1BM geographic unit which creates the nevw
model back though PC Company headgquartere and contracts personnel to
Microsoft, it is not sucprising that there have been cases where type/

model numbers have been inadvertantly omitted from notification letters,
either as the result of a typing mistake when the notification letter

wan created or as a result of migcommunication somewhere in the process.

IBX has used reasonable efforts to comply with the notification requirements
and has acted in good faith in making royalty payments to Microsoft. We are
in the proceas of revising procedures for notification to avoid such

errors, but do not think it is in the interest of either pacty to “punish"
che IBM brands, which in some cages have committed 100% of their systems

to Windows, for a relatively emall number of administrative exrroxé.

Nell, IBM has Do interest in stopping the audit, which is taking coneiderable
time and resource and im disruptive to our daily operationa. We want to
complete the audit as soon as possible and ae we discussed in our

telephone conversation, IBY has been £ully cooperative in providing the
auditors with the jnformation that they require to perform the audit.

.. Howevery the auditors have asked IBM and Microsoft for clarification on
ispues which besr directly on the apdit findings, and it is IBM'a position

that it is not useful to ignore this reguect until after the audit ie

;comple:e.‘aincé an.in:ozzect‘inte:pretation of the contract may distort
¢he audit findings. If there is disagreement potween IBM and Microsofit
_on issuen relating to how the audit ghould be conducted or how data

. ghould be interpreted, thaen 1BM's position is that these issues should

e

pe resolved quickly to pernit the auditore to complete their work without
engaging in noaproductive activity.

We believe that these iasues can and should be resolved quickly with

-appropriate .focua by both parties. I would appreciate your assistance in

expediting thie matterg”viease”givéﬂme'a*callrifwyuu:hauawany guestions
aboutr this letter or IBM's position on any of the issues.

. With respect. to your comments about the signing of the Windows 95 licensea

agreement, we consider the Windowe 95 contract negotiations. to be completely
separate and unrelated to the audit and are actively negotiating with
Mark Baber to clcee a Windows 95 agreement ae soon a8 possible.

Sincerely yours,
ﬂ/m%/u

ames R. Miller
Manager, Contracts Operations

co: Bruce claflin, IBM
Jerry Casler, IBY
Joachim Kempin, Microsoft
Mark Baber, Microsoft
Scott Palka, Ernst & Young



